HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
April 25, 2003
2:53 PM

TAPE HFC 03 — 65, Side A
TAPE HFC 03 - 65, Side B
TAPE HFC 03 - 66, Side A

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair WIllianms called the House Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 2:53 PM

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative John Harris, Co-Chair
Representative Bill WIlIlianms, Co-Chair
Representative Kevin Meyer, Vice-Chair
Representative M ke Chenaul t
Representative Eric Croft
Representative Ri chard Foster
Representati ve M ke Hawker
Representative Carl Mses
Representative Bill Stoltze
Representative Ji m Wi taker

VEMBERS ABSENT

Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e

ALSO PRESENT

Representative Pete Kott; Representative Peggy WIson; Rick
Urion, Director CQOccupati onal Li censi ng, Department  of

Community and Econom c Devel opnent; Edgar Bl atchford,

Comm ssi oner, Depar t ment of Communi ty and Econom ¢
Devel opnent; Tom Lawson, Director, Adm nistrative Services,

Departnent of Comunity and Econom c Devel opnent; Diane
Bar r ans, Executive Director, Post secondary Educati on
Comm ssion, Departnent of Education; Rhonda R chtsneier,

Assi st Chief, Section of Public Health Nursing; Linda Fink,

Al aska State Hospital and Nursing Hone Association; Tom
[ rw n, Comm ssi oner, Departnment of  Natural Resour ces;

Ernesta Ballard, Conmm ssioner, Departnent of Environnental

Conservation; Larry Persily, Deputy Comm ssioner, Departnent

of Revenue; Gary Zimrerman, Vice President, AVIS; Jerry
Burnett, Comm ssioner, Departnment of Corrections; Fred
Coven, Al aska State Enpl oyees Associ ation.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

John Robertson, Medical Director, Departnent of Corrections;
Dick LeFebvre, Acting Deputy Comm ssioner, Departnent of

House Fi nance Committee 1 04/ 25/ 03 2:53 PM



Nat ural Resources; Canmeron Leonard, Assistant Attorney
CGeneral, Departnent of Law, Andrew Hal cro, AVIS.

SUMVARY

HB 162 "An Act increasing the fee for a state business
| icense; and providing for an effective date."

CSHB 162 (FIN) was heard and HELD in Commttee for
further consideration.

HB 192 "An Act designating the Departnent of Natural
Resources as |ead agency for resource devel opnent
proj ects; meki ng conform ng anendnents; and
providing for an effective date."

HB 192 was REPORTED out of Commttee with a “do
pass” recommendation and two zero fiscal notes:
#1 from Departnent of Natural Resources and #2
from Departnent of Environnental Conservation.

HB 211 "An Act relating to a student |oan repaynent
program for nurses, and anending the duties of the
Board of Nursing that relate to this program and
providing for an effective date."

HB 211 was heard and HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

HB229 "An Act relating to special nedical parole and to
prisoners who are severely nmedi cal |y and
cognitively disabled."

HB 229 was heard and HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

HB 271 "An Act levying and providing for the collection
and adm nistration of an excise tax on passenger
vehicle rentals; and providing for an effective
date."

HB 271 was heard and HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

SB 115 "An Act allowi ng expenses of the correctional
i ndustries program that nay be financed from the
correctional industries fund to include the
sal aries and benefits of state enpl oyees."

HCS SB 115 (FIN) was REPORTED out of Commttee
with a “do pass” recommendati on and one previously
public fiscal inpact note from the Departnent of
Corrections.

House Fi nance Committee 2 04/ 25/ 03 2:53 PM



#hb192
HOUSE BILL NO 192

"An Act designating the Departnent of Natural Resources
as lead agency for resource developnment projects;
maki ng conform ng anmendnents; and providing for an
effective date."

TOM | RW N, COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES
testified in support of the bill and provided infornmation

He stressed his support of the Governor’s priority to
devel op natural resources. He highlighted the intention of
the legislation to |lead and coordi nate the operations only,
and not to take authority away from the other Departnents.
He read from prepared testinony as foll ows:

The purpose of this bill is to help facilitate and
expedite resource developnment in Alaska. This bill
woul d specifically provide the Conm ssioner of the
Department of Natural Resources wth statutory
authority under AS 38.05.020(b) to lead and

coordinate all mtters relating to the state’s
review and authorization of resource devel opnent
proj ects.

As the state focuses nore on developnent of its
resources the departnent needs clear and explicit
authority to <carry out its role to l|ead and
coordinate the state’'s review and authorization of
resource devel opnment projects. Even though the
departnent has and wll continue to serve as |ead
for mning projects, the departnent’s authority to
serve as |lead agency for other resource devel opnent
projects is not as explicit. This bill wll provide
the necessary clarity as the state noves forward in
t he devel opnent of its resources.

The primary responsibility in the Departnent of
Natural Resources for <carrying out |ead agency

coordination functions will rest with the Ofice of
Project Managenent and Permtting. This new Ofice
w thin t he depart nment i ncl udes t he proj ect

managenment function and the Al aska Coastal Zone
Managenent program

Large resource developnent projects, because of
their scope and conplexity, are nore efficiently
reviewed and authorized using a lead agency to
coordinate and integrate, to the extent possible,
the various permtting processes of the agencies
involved using the project team approach. Smaller
projects, normally less conplex and requiring fewer
permts, may benefit from | ead agency coordination

House Fi nance Committee 3 04/ 25/ 03 2:53 PM



for review but may not require the establishment of
a project team

Resource devel opnent projects wutilizing the |ead
coordi nati ng agency and project review team approach
will go through a three phase process. Phase |
focuses on evaluating a proposed project to
determine if the |ead agency project team approach
woul d best address the review and permtting needs
of the project. Phase Il results in establishnment of
the project team developnent of an integrated
agency review schedule, delineation of information
requi renents, and conpletion of any necessary
agreenents anongst the agencies and applicant. Phase
1l is the actual project review and authorization

process, including public participation, tailored
specifically to the requirenents for permtting the
proj ect.

Additionally, we view this bill as assisting in our
efforts to strean i ne proj ect revi ew and
authorization. This bill will help to facilitate:

The state’'s ability to pull together agencies to
address project specific concerns, and to facilitate
and expedite the review and authorization process; a
nore cohesive working relationship anbngst agency
representatives; better conmuni cati on, nor e
efficient permtting, consolidated public process
where possible, and to assist in integrating the
state’'s process with that of the federal agencies.

Speaki ng from personal experi ence, t he | aws
governing resource developnment have proliferated,
and there are now nore agencies than ever wth
permtting authority over resource devel opnent
projects. Resource devel opnent should not be held up
by the sheer conplexity of government. This bill is
intended to help alleviate that problemas this bil
would authorize DNR to l|ead and coordinate the
permtting activities of al | agenci es wth
jurisdiction over the project.

Comm ssioner Irwin noted that in effect all operations woul d
be brought into one office to facilitate coordi nation.

ERNESTA BALLARD, COWM SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF ENVI RONVENTAL
CONSERVATI ON expressed support of the bill. She referred to
her prepared statenent:

Governor Murkowski is commtted to enhancing Al aska’s
econony through resource developnent. He is equally
commtted to protecting Alaska s environnment. A strong
econony wll generate the revenue base to continue

House Fi nance Committee 4 04/ 25/ 03 2:53 PM



funding our inportant regulatory and devel opnent
projects. Wthout a strong econony we cannot hope to
have a strong governnent.

| have been before this commttee to speak on behal f of
other governor’s bills and have opened wth that sanme
nessage. It is a fundanental principle to this
adm ni strati on and bears repeating.

In any undertaking, be it your home, your office, a
small business or a large conplex organization |ike
state gover nnment _ critical pat h pl anni ng (IS
fundanental; wth out it time is wasted. This bill, HB
192, is about critical path planning. It directs the
Departnent of Natural Resources to |ead and coordinate

resource devel opnent proj ects. | t directs t he
permtting agenci es to sequence actions and
requirenents so tinme lines are net. Arned wth

sequenced and prioritized project plans we can insure
t hat each  of our own departnent’s permtting
requi renents are nmet wthout del ay

The genesis of this bill goes back several years. The
resource agenci es cane t oget her to coordi nate
permtting 1issues on large mne projects. They
di scussed, planned and communi cated, and found that the

permtting process becane nore efficient. It was not
only nore efficient for the agencies; it was nore
productive for industry. Wiy?  Because, we, t he
permtting agenci es, identified our regul atory

requirenents in a systematic and sequenced nanner
insuring that the nost critical needs and tinelines for
the project were established. Because we, DNR, Fish and
Ganme and DEC had identified and articulated the
critical points and tines in our regulatory processes,
i ndustry understood its responsibilities and provided
the needed information on tine. Additionally by
evaluating its regulatory responsibilities as a whole
i ndustry can gain what synergies are possible.

Critical path planning provides efficiencies for the
departnents as well. W hold joint neetings. W use
staff resour ces efficiently. | ndustry provi des
information we can all use because we agreed, at the
outset, on data standards acceptable to all.

The state’'s citizens benefit from this approach. In
rural comunities it is nore difficult to track
separate agency processes so when agencies hold joint
public neetings concerned citizens are given the entire
regul atory picture. Wth out critical path planning,
public participation happens based in the public notice
requi renent of individual permts, which can be nonths
even years apart depending on the project.

House Fi nance Committee 5 04/ 25/ 03 2:53 PM



| have also talked with many of you about how we are
review ng our regulations and statutes to ensure they
are neaningful and not a victim of mssion creep. As
part of that process, we are deleting 46.35 Permt
Coordi nati on and Extension. This statute was enacted in
1977. That sane year the legislature established the
Coastal Managenent Program which becane the permt
coordinator. AS 46.35 has becone a relict. However
there is one small section of AS 46.35 that is being
rel ocated. Sections 2 and 3 of this bill nove the
Department of Environnental Conservation’s authority to
use our appeals process to other sections of |aw

The DEC process is easier to use and well laid out in
under st andabl e regul ati ons.

It is also inmportant to understand what HB 192 does not
do. HB 192 bill does not change the protective
standards that the state has devel oped and fine-tuned
over the |last decade. It does not change the Depart nent

of Envi r onnent al Conservation’s permtting
requi renents, its regulatory discretion, enforcenent or
appeal process. This bill sinply insures critical path
pl anni ng.

Comm ssioner Ballard summarized that the bill provided the

opportunity to be nore organized. She noted that, as the
permtting agency, DEC benefited from identifying at the
outset key data requirenents needed to produce permts in a
tinely fashion. She stressed that having clear |egislative
| anguage provides the agency wth a clear nandate in the
permtting project.

Ms. Ballard enphasized the inportance of critical path
pl anning. By noving permts and the project forward in a
coordi nated way, the departnent is able to effectively use
resources and to present to the public the entire project as
it noves forward. O herwise, the public my only view
portions of the projects and may not be able to understand
its inpact on their community. She noted her commtnent to
both resource devel opnent and resource conservation and her
belief that they are conpatible. She also noted her
determ nation to identify instances of “m ssion creep”.

Ms. Ballard explained that, resulting from a review of
statutes and in conjunction with HB 192, the Departnent is
del eting AS 46.35, “permt coordination and extension”. She
stated that the statute had never been used since its
enactnment in 1977, the sane year that the |legislature
establ i shed the Coastal Managenent Program which becane the
permt coordinator. She noted that they had proposed a
relocation of a small segnent of the statute: Section 2 &

House Fi nance Committee 6 04/ 25/ 03 2:53 PM



3, which would nove DEC s authority to use the appeals
process to other sections of |aw

Ms. Ballard expressed her enthusiasm for this type of
coordination, and reiterated the inportance of coordinating
the permtting process to provide a clear path for resource
devel opnent .

Representative Croft asked if AS 46.35 had ever been used.
Ms. Ballard confirned that it had never been used. She noted
that they retained the authority to use their own appeals
process.

CAVERON LEONARDS, ASSI STANT ATTORNEY GENERAL, DEPARTMENT OF
LAW in response to a question by Representative Croft,
explained that two provisions of 46.35 would remain in
statute following the proposed bill, one of which would be
relocated from 46.35.090 (e). The relocated |anguage
clarifies that procedures to review DEC permt decisions
need not conformto the Adm nistrative Procedure Act (APA).
He explained that sections 2 and 3 of the bill sinply
transplanted this existing provision to two chapters of
Title 46 that govern DEC perm tting deci sions.

Representative Croft asked which provisions did not need to
conform to APA and why. M. Leonard noted that the
procedures governing adjudication hearings were already
covered conprehensively in DEC regul ations and by existing
| aw were not subject to the APA He confirnmed that this
paral | el ed APA procedures.

Representative Foster MOWED to report HB 192 out of
Commttee with the acconpanying fiscal note. There being NO
OBJECTION it was so ordered.

HB 192 was REPORTED out of Commttee with a “do pass”
recommendation and two zero fiscal not es: #1 from
Department of Natural Resources and #2 from Departnent of
Envi ronnent al Conservati on

#hb229

HOUSE BI LL NO. 229

"An Act relating to special nedical parole and to
prisoners who are severely nedically and cognitively
di sabl ed. "

TOM WRI GHT, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE JOHN HARRI S, deferred to
the Departnments of Corrections and Health and Soci al
Services to answer questions about the new fiscal notes.

JERRY BURNETT, DI RECTOR ADM NI STRATI VE SERVI CES, DEPARTMENT

OF CORRECTI ONS addressed the new fiscal note. He deferred
to Dr. John Robertson to answer questions.

House Fi nance Committee 7 04/ 25/ 03 2:53 PM



JOHN ROBERTSON, MEDI CAL DI RECTOR, DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTI ONS,
observed that the new note nore accurately takes into
account the |ife expectancy of the paroled inmates, as well
as reflecting the resources available to themand its inpact
on potential savings. He added that the new note also
reflected the cost of a correctional officer in relation to
patient care. He expressed confidence in the new figures.

Co-Chair Harris observed that the projected potential
savi ngs of general funds in FY 09 was $805 thousand, offset
by a projected general funds cost of $234 thousand for the
Departnent of Corrections, and calculated that the overal
savings vs. costs, including the Departnent of Health and
Social Services, for that year wuld be $500 thousand
proj ect ed.

Representative Hawker noted material changes in the new
fiscal notes and expressed disappointnent in the quality of
i nformati on provi ded by the new notes.

Representative Foster MOWED to report HB 229 out of
Comm ttee W th i ndi vi dual recommendat i ons and t he
acconpanyi ng fiscal note.

Representati ve Hawker OBJECTED. He reiterated his belief
that the fiscal information was inadequate to nake a
deci si on.

Representati ve Wi taker al so OBJECTED on that same basis.
Aroll call vote was taken on the notion.

I N FAVOR: Chenault; Foster; Meyer; Harris; WIIlians
OPPCSED: Croft; Hawker; Mses; Stoltze; Witaker

The vote was tied at 5 to 5.

HB 229 was HEARD and HELD in Committee for further
consi derati on.

#sb115

SENATE BILL NO. 115(efd fld)

"An  Act allowi ng expenses of the correctional
industries program that my be financed from the
correctional industries fund to include the salaries
and benefits of state enployees.”

Vi ce-Chair Meyer MOVED to ADOPT the Committee Substitute 23-
GS1104\D (4/25). There being NO OBJECTION the Commttee
Substitute was ADOPTED.

Vice-Chair Meyer pointed out the changes in the Committee

Substitute. He noted that the changes were to incorporate
coments made during the previous Commttee hearing, and

House Fi nance Committee 8 04/ 25/ 03 2:53 PM



made reference to Co-Chair Harris’ concerns about conpeting
wWith private industry. He also noted concerns raised by the
Publ ic Enpl oyees Union, and stated that these parties were
now i n agreenent on the bill

JERRY  BURNETT, DI RECTOR OF ADM NI STATIVE  SERVI CES,
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTI ONS spoke to the changes contained in
the Commttee Substitute. He noted that the Committee
Substitute provides intent to Kkeep the correctional
industries program operating if it fails to produce
sufficient incone. He referred to Section 3, b 2, stating
that the correctional institute may sell products to other

conpanies as approved by the Correctional I ndustries
Comm ssion. The section deletes: “have mniml negative
inpact on existing private industry or |abor force” and
inserts: “wll be of benefit to”. The purpose of the change
is to encourage correctional institutions to work wth
private industry.

Co-Chair Harris asked who determnes the benefit. M.
Bar net t i ndi cat ed t hat t he Correctional I ndustries
Comm ssi on, appoi nted by the Governor and neeting quarterly,
determ nes the benefit. In response to a question by Co-

Chair Harris, M. Burnett explained that the Conm ssion nade
findings and hel d public hearings.

FRED COVEN, ALASKA STATE EMPLOYEES ASSOCI ATI QN, expressed
his support for the Conmttee Substitute. He added that the
effective date gave the correctional industry the tine
needed to plan for budgetary changes.

Public testinony concl uded.

Representative Foster MOVED to report HCS SB 115 (FIN) out
of Commttee wth the acconpanying fiscal note. There being
NO OBJECTION it was so ordered.

HCS SB 115 (FIN) was REPORTED out of Commttee with a “do
pass” recomrendati on and one previously public fiscal inpact
note fromthe Departnent of Corrections.

Vice-Chair Myer MWED to Introduce a House Concurrent
Resolution for a title change: work draft 23-LS1047\A
(4/ 24/ 03) on the House Floor. There being NO OBJECTIQN, it
was so ordered.

#hb211

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 211

"An Act relating to a student |oan repaynent program
for nurses, and anending the duties of the Board of
Nursing that relate to this program and providing for
an effective date.™

House Fi nance Committee 9 04/ 25/ 03 2:53 PM



REPRESENTATI VE PEGGY W LSON, SPONSOR, provided information
about the legislation. She enphasized the nursing shortage
in the state of Alaska. She noted that the vacancy rate was
11.5 percent. Traveling nurses fromother states were being

used to fill these vacancies. The bill would create an
incentive in assisting nurses in repaying their school
| oans. To qualify for the |oan reinbursenment program an

i ndi vi dual woul d have to be hired as a nurse in Al aska after
July 1 of 2003, be licensed in the state, work in Al aska and
have an outstanding school loan from a recognized
institution. The program would reinburse $2 thousand per
year, up to a total of $10 thousand. She noted that this
anount woul d not cover a nurse’s entire education expense,
but would serve as a tool in recruitnent. She expl ai ned
that the State Board of Nursing would adopt the criteria
guidelines for the loan program in consultation with the
Al aska Conmm ssion on Post-secondary Educati on. She added
that it wuld be appropriated from the student |[oan
corporation dividend.

Representative WIson pointed out that currently 5,200
nurses are working in Alaska and that the wuniversity
produced 110 nurses per year. The intent is to double the

anount (220 per year). In next seven years, due to growth
in health care needs, Alaska will need an additional 1,400
nurses. She maintained that the proposed bill is crucial to

nmeeting that need.

Co-Chair Harris asked whether |oan reinbursenent prograns
were being created for any other groups, such as teachers.
Representative WIlson stated that a program already existed
for teachers, which was used as a nodel for the proposed
program for nurses. Co-Chair Harris asked for an
expl anation of the repaynent program Representative WI son
explained that if a hospital were attenpting to hire a nurse
into the state, the reinbursenent program would be an
additional incentive in providing reinbursenent of $2
t housand per year, up to $10 thousand, of their outstanding
student | oans. She also noted that if a new nurse lived in
Al aska, they mght choose to stay in the state and take
advant age of the program

Co-Chair Harris observed that the student |oan program
woul d incur a cost of $918,000 in FY 04, up to a possible
$5.1 mllion in FY 09.

Representative WIson noted that if the state of Al aska
could not recruit nurses, then nurses would be brought in
from other states. She enphasized that since the traveling
nurses cost nearly double the salary of instate nurses, this
woul d escal ate health care costs in the state.

In response to a question by Co-Chair Harris, Representative
Wl son noted that nearly every hospital, from small to

House Fi nance Committee 10 04/ 25/ 03 2: 53 PM



| arge, was paying |arge anmounts for traveling nurses. She
specul ated that in Southeast Al aska sone hospitals pay over
$100 per year just on traveling nurses. She noted that
t hese nurses demanded hi gher sal ari es.

Co-Chair Harris asked if there was a provision offering

benefits to students who attended school in Al aska
Representative Wl son noted that there was no provision, but
added that there were enough vacancies to fill with nurses

fromany | ocation.

DI ANE BARRANS, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, POSTSECONDARY EDUCATI ON
COWM SSI ON, DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATI ON poi nted out a correction
in the analysis of the fiscal note that inaccurately totaled
t he nunber of nurses (2,525).

Representative Croft asked for expl anation  of t he
progression in the nunber of nurses. M. Barrans expl ai ned
that they used projections fromthe Departnent of Labor from
a report of trends for April 2003. The figures were
extracted based on new positions, estimating that they would
be nost likely to have student | oans outstandi ng.

LI NDA FI NK, ASSI STANT DI RECTOR, ALASKA STATE HOSPI TAL AND
NURSI NG HOVE ASSOCIATION testified in support of the
| egi sl ati on. She stated that they had worked closely with
the University of Al aska to double the nunber of nurses, but
enphasi zed that this would not neet projected needs. She
al so noted their work to devel op distance delivery prograns
and other training prograns. They also work with advance
training progranms for nurses, K-12 education, and job
centers to increase health care opportunities. She observed
that the bill presents another avenue to increase retention
and recruitnment for nurses.

HB 211 was heard and HELD in Comrmittee for further
consi derati on.

#hb162

HOUSE BI LL NO. 162

"An Act increasing the fee for a state business
| icense; and providing for an effective date."

RI CK URI ON, DI RECTOR OCCUPATI ONAL LI CENSI NG DEPARTMENT OF
COVWUNI TY AND ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT, testified in support of
the |egislation. He stated that the cost of business
| i censi ng had remai ned at $25 per year in Al aska since 1949.
He noted that a nethod had been devised [in the House Labor
and Commerce Conmittee] of stepping up the licensing fee
depending on the nunber of enployees: $50 for those wth
five or less enployees, $100 for those with between 6 and 25
enpl oyees, and $200 for business wth nore than 25
enpl oyees. He stated that the revenue generated from that
met hod was | ess than desired.

House Fi nance Committee 11 04/ 25/ 03 2: 53 PM



He explained that the bill proposed a new nethod that

depends on the type of business. He noted that sole
proprietors would be charged $100 per year, and corporations
$300 per year. He pointed out that this new nethod

generated $2.8 million nore revenue for the state of Al aska.
He mai ntained that the new nmethod was sinple to adm nister.
He noted that the only objections to the proposal have cone
fromsmal |l businesses.

TAPE HFC 03 - 65, Side B

M. Uion referred to the proposed changes in a Committee
Substitute.

Co-Chair Harris observed that under the new system smaller
enpl oyers that were incorporated would still pay the higher
anount since corporations would typically have a | arger cash
flow.

Vice-Chair Meyer MOWED to Adopt the Commttee Substitute

Wrk Draft 23-Gnl1102\1 (4/25/03). Representative Croft
OBJECTED.

Representative Croft comented that his small business,
because it is incorporated, would go from paying $25 to $300
per year. He nmaintained that this was too large an
I ncr ease. He stated that he preferred the Labor and

Commerce Committee Substitute.
Aroll call vote was taken on the notion.

I N FAVOR: Foster, Meyer, Stoltze, WIllians, Harris
OPPCSED: Croft, Moses

There being NO OBJECTION, the Conmttee Substitute was
ADOPTED.

Representative Moses noted that his small business woul d now
pay the sane anount as a | arge corporation

Co-Chair Harris asked how many categories now existed; he
poi nted out that the previous Commttee Substitute contained
three categores. M. Uion noted that there were two
cat egori es: sole proprietorships and corporations. He
mai ntai ned that corporations would be nore sophisticated
busi nesses.

In response to a question by Representative Stoltze, M.

Urion noted that the |icenses would now be annual. The cost
will be $190 thousand nore per year, as indicated in the
fiscal note, due to the need for nore personnel. He

specul ated that the system mght be streamined in the

House Fi nance Committee 12 04/ 25/ 03 2: 53 PM



future when the conputer system is updated to allow
pur chasi ng of businesses |icenses online.

Representative Stoltze asked if businesses could apply for
two-year |icenses. M. Wion conceded that this was
possible. He stated that the goal was to have a consistent
system

Representative Croft asked for the reason to begin |icensing
every year. M. Uion noted the rationale that to charge
annually mnim zed the inpact on businesses.

Representative Mdses asked whether a small famly business
woul d be considered a sole proprietorship, even though they
have a partnership. M. Uion confirmed that such a
busi ness woul d be considered a sol e proprietorship.

Co-Chair Harris referred to the fiscal note that listed
three full tinme positions. M. Uion stated that the fiscal
note referred to the Labor and Commerce proposal that was
nore difficult to admnister. He noted that the new
Committee Substitute required only two new positions. Co-
Chair Harris observed that no cost was |isted on the fiscal
note for these two positions. M. UWUion could not produce
the rationale for that figure.

CSHB 162 (FIN) was heard and HELD in Conmttee for further
consi derati on.

#hb271

HOUSE BILL NO 271

"An Act levying and providing for the collection and
adm nistration of an excise tax on passenger vehicle
rentals; and providing for an effective date."

KRI' S KNAUSS, STAFF, REPRSENTATIVE KOIT (SPONSOR) provided
information regarding the bill. He noted that the bil

inplenents a ten percent tax on rental cars, and a three
percent tax on recreational vehicles (RVs), for rentals
under 90 days. He highlighted the new fiscal note prepared
by the Departnent of Revenue that indicated revenue of $6

mllion annually. He referred to the changes on page 1,
line 7 of the bill and noted that the sponsor was happy with
t hese changes. He pointed out that the bill had been

changed froma 15% to a 10% tax, and now included RVs. He
confirmed that the Sponsor was in agreenent wth the
changes.

Representative Stoltze asked whether this mght be
detrinmental to the tourism industry. M. Knauss responded
that they would like to see tourists pay their fare share.

Representative Foster referred to the tax authorized by
Anchorage of 8 percent, and asked whether the proposed 15

House Fi nance Committee 13 04/ 25/ 03 2: 53 PM



percent would be added to that tax, totaling 23 percent.
M. Knauss confirmed that this was true, placing Al aska in
the top third of states in terns of car rental taxes. He
noted other states wth higher rates of tax.

Co-Chair Harris asked whether the bill allowed for Al aska
residents to be excluded from the rental car tax. M.
Knauss stated that the only exenption was for governnental
enpl oyees. In response to a question by Co-Chair Harris,
M. Knauss confirnmed that |egislators would not pay the tax
when on business trips.

Vice-Chair Meyer reiterated that Anchorage would be in the
top third of states wth the additional tax. He asked about
ot her communities, such as Fairbanks. M. Knauss confirned
that other communities totaled different percentages.

Vice-Chair Meyer asked if the funding would be directed to
road mai ntenance. Representative Kott stated that page 2 of
the bill offered intent |anguage, and noted that the revenue
woul d be placed within the General Fund to be appropriated
according to the | egislature.

Vi ce-Chair Meyer noted that there is a dedicated bed tax in
Anchorage and questioned if that was the intent of the
proposed bill. Representative Kott indicated that the intent
| anguage tax revenue mght be directed toward tourism
mar keting. He stated that he would like to see sone of the
tax return to the industry. He pointed out that, even wth
the 10 percent tax, Al aska would still be several percents
| ess than the anmpbunt charged in Seattle. He stressed that
the cost of car rentals in Seattle has never kept him from
renting a car there.

Vice-Chair Meyer observed that the tourism industry has
requested nore funding and added that he would like to see
nore noney avail abl e.

Representative Croft referred to the state-by-state
conpari son of rental car taxes and commented that the reason
that some of the percentages rose so high was due to

addi tional sales taxes. He noted that with a ten percent
state rental tax, Alaska would actually be in the top five
in terms of the rental tax alone. Representative Kott

confirnmed that the addition of l|ocal airport tax placed
Alaska in the top third of the nation

Representative Croft conpared Al aska’'s aggregate rental tax
Wi th other areas, such as Seattle, and naintained that the
new tax would place Anchorage substantially ahead of these
ar eas. Representative Knauss stated that in Illinois, the
maxi mum | ocal tax rate was 18.5 percent. Representati ve
Croft observed that Anchorage paid 19 percent ||ocally,

House Fi nance Committee 14 04/ 25/ 03 2: 53 PM



including airport charges, in addition to the 10 percent
proposed by the bill

LARRY PERSILY, DEPUTY COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
noted that if the version of the bill [House Ways and Means
Commttee] passed, it wuld add up to 29 percent in
Anchorage, which was the sane conbined tax and fees as
Seattle. He noted that all fees were not reflected in the
chart (copy on file).

Representative Croft also asked whether, apart from the
airport fees, Anchorage would still be ahead of Seattle.
M. Persily responded that if one included nunicipal sales
tax in Seattle as well as state sales tax, the rate of tax
was the sanme as Washi ngton

Representative Stoltze asked if this proposal had been
di scussed by previous |egislatures. Representative Kott
noted that a simlar bill was introduced in 1999, both in
the Senate and House.

Representative Stoltze asked whether prices of rental cars
reflected the cost of taxes. Representative Kott observed
that the tax would inplenent approximately a $4.50 increase
in the price of the overall cost of a rental vehicle.
Representative Stoltze asked whether they had considered a
seasonal tax, effectively exenpting Al askans from rentals

during non-tourist season. Representative Kott nmintained
that a seasonal tax would not be cost effective. He added
that the bill would not affect Al askans since npbst Al askans

did not need a rental car in the state for extended peri ods
of time, with the exception of state governnent work, which
I's exenpted.

M. Persily added that in Anchorage 75 percent of the
vehicle rentals occurred in the second and third quarter of
t he year. He also pointed out that in footnote #2, there
had to be sone basis for conparison, since states m ght have
various additional fees. He stated that the conpari son was
based on a $50 per day average, but explained that this did
not necessarily represent the percent of charge.

Representative Mses asked why recreational vehicles were
charged at a different rate. Representative Kott noted that
originally the tax was proposed at the sane rate. However
after speaking with car rental conpanies, it indicated that
a previous tax increase mght have caused sone conpanies to
go out of business. After reflection, they concluded that
the fee was lowered for RV's since their rental fee was
al ready substantially higher and this mght discourage
busi ness.

Representative Mses speculated that the vast mgjority of
the RV s were rented by non-residents, and proposed that the

House Fi nance Committee 15 04/ 25/ 03 2: 53 PM



fees should not be | ower. Representative Kott maintained
that it should be kept equitable.

GARY ZI MVERVAN, GENERAL MANAGER- VI CE PRESI DENT, AVI S RENT- A-
CAR, ANCHORAGE, commented that they have offices statew de.
He stated that his industry opposes HB 271. He read from a
HR 1 regarding the inportance of econom c devel opnent
t hroughout the State, particularly tourism He questi oned

why the bill was introduced to target the rental car
i ndustry. He challenged sone of the background i nformation
contained in the sponsor statenent. For exanple, he

mai ntained that the business climte in Alaska is very
different than that of Seattle. He noted the pressures on
his industry to increase their inventory during the tourism
season, and to decrease inventory during the rest of the

year . He pointed out that Seattle has an eleven to twelve
nont h season. There is a trenendous increase in business in
Al aska during the sunmer. He contended that adding

additional taxes to a price conpetitive market would have
drastic consequences for Al askan rental car busi nesses.

M. Zimerman noted that the sponsor statenent indicated
that extra [rental] vehicles caused road danmage. He
contended that notor hones cause far nore damage in the
tourism field than a rental car, since they are a heavier
vehi cl e and create parking problens.

M. Zimmerman noted that the anmpunt charged for the |ease
woul d place Alaska in the top one or two npbst expensive
mar ket places in the United States. He referred to the
earlier nmentioned conparative table, and strongly questioned
the validity of its information. He pointed out that the
table lists local tax as “non applicable”, while it had been
stated that Anchorage charges an airport tax. He noted that
| ocal sales tax “up to 6 percent” was not correct, with a
total of 5 percent sales tax plus a 4 percent “vehicle
guided facilities fee” in areas |like Sitka. He mai nt ai ned
that the current tax rate in Anchorage was currently 19
percent, placing Alaska in the top ten nationw de, and added
that the proposed tax would then place Al aska at 29 percent
second in the nation.

M. Zinmrerman concluded that the bill requires nore correct
i nformati on. He listed additional taxes for specific
comunities in addition to the proposed tax.

TAPE HFC 03 - 66, Side A
Co-Chair WIllians encourage M. Zimerman to speak wth
Representative Kott and M. Persly regarding these facts.

He suggested that additional testinony could be heard on the
bill.

House Fi nance Committee 16 04/ 25/ 03 2: 53 PM



M. Zimerman went on to note that the car rental industry
concern over the possibility of a statew de sales tax being
eventually added to the fee. He nmaintained that this would
be disastrous to the industry.

M. Zinmmrerman pointed out that just the Fairbanks and
Anchorage car rental industry paid the State of Alaska $4.5
mllion dollars per year, based on the gross 10 percent fee
paid to the state. In addition, he stated that $1.5 nmillion
was paid in fees to the Departnent of Mtor Vehicles.
Airport parking total ed $250 thousand, and custoners pay in
the area $500 thousand dollars in state gas tax. He
concluded that the industry already paid fees totaling $6 to
$7 mllion, in a marketplace which grosses $45 mllion. He
noted that this therefore represented a fee of 10 percent of
gr oss receipts.

M. Zimmerman also stated that the car rental industry is
currently struggling. Nationwi de, air travel is decreasing;

non-crui se passengers have decreased by six percent. The
projections for this sumrer are low and the market is not
gr ow ng. He also noted that the majority of car rental

agencies are locally owed and that sone | ocations have been
cl osed recently.

M. Zimerman stated that HEIA the marketing branch of the
Al aska Tourism Industry Association is against targeted
taxes in the visitor industry. He quoted the Sponsor in
addition to the Governor as having stated they did not
support a cruise ship tax since it “targeted a single
sector”.

M. Zinmrerman recommended that the Legislature needs nore
information on the negative inpact of an additional tax on
the car rental business before nmaking a deci sion.

Vi ce-Chair Meyer asked for a breakdown of car rentals for
t he busi ness sector and the tourismindustry. M. Zi nmernman
responded that the true tourist business conprised 60
percent of the sunmmer business. During the winter, Cctober
to late April, the bulk of business is corporate.

Vice-Chair Meyer noted that in Anchorage car rentals had
| ocations outside the airport. He asked if custoners could
avoid airport tax by using other |ocation. M. Zi mrer man
confirmed that this was true, although they could not divert
busi ness. He noted that some hotels had shuttle services
from the airport. Vice-Chair Meyer speculated that a
custonmer could avoid airport tax by choosing another
| ocati on.

Representative Mses noted that the proposed tax could not
be avoi ded.

House Fi nance Committee 17 04/ 25/ 03 2: 53 PM



Representative \Witaker asked whether the car renta
i ndustry would support a broad based tax on all goods and
servi ces. M. Zinmrerman confirmed that they would support
such a tax.

Representative Croft asked if M. Persily’ s characterization
that 75 percent of businesses in the sunmer conprised three
quarters of the yearly business. M. Zi mmer man observed
that M. Persily had referred to the second and third
gquarters. He noted that the summer business spanned June in
the second quarter and July and August in the third quarter.
He confirmed that in a broad characterization, approximtely
50 percent of business was during those three nonths.

HB 271 was heard and HELD in Committee for further
consi derati on.

#

ADJ QURNIVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 4:45 PM

House Fi nance Committee 18 04/ 25/ 03 2: 53 PM



